
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

LICENSING COMMITTEE
to be held on

FRIDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2019
at

9.30 AM
in the

NEWTON ROOM, THE GUILDHALL ARTS CENTRE, ST PETER'S 
HILL, GRANTHAM NG31 6PZ

Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth

Councillor Robert Broughton
Councillor George Chivers
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown
Councillor Ms Jane Kingman

Councillor Nikki Manterfield
Councillor Bob Russell
Councillor Mrs Sarah Stokes
Councillor Frank Turner
Councillor Dean Ward (Vice-Chairman)

Committee Support
Officer:

Lucy Bonshor Tel: 01476 40 61 20
E-mail: l.bonshor@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  APOLOGIES 

2  DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 7 SEPTEMBER 2018 (Pages 3 - 7)



EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

It is anticipated that, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended) the public may be excluded from the

meeting during consideration of the following item of business because of
the likelihood that otherwise exempt information, as described in

paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Act (as amended) would be disclosed to the
public.

4  APPLICATION TO RENEW A HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVER'S LICENCE 
(Pages 9 - 22)

Report CSL161 from the Licensing Officer Commercial and Operational Services.

5  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT. 



MINUTES
LICENSING COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 7 SEPTEMBER 2018

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth (Chairman)
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown
Councillor Ms Jane Kingman
Councillor Nikki Manterfield
Councillor Bob Russell

OFFICERS OTHER MEMBERS

Licensing Officer (Richard Etherton) 
Technical Support Officer (Lin Johnstone)
Legal Advisor (Mandy Braithwaite)
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor) 

Councillor Dr Peter Moseley, Cabinet 
Member for Environment 

59. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors’ Broughton, Chivers, 
Sarah Stokes, Turner and Ward.

60. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

None disclosed.

61. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15 JUNE 2018

The minutes from the meeting held on 15 June 2018 were agreed as a correct 
record.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

It was anticipated that, in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended) the public may be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business because of the likelihood that otherwise 
exempt information, as described in paragraphs 1 and 2 of the Act (as amended) 
would be disclosed to the public.

3

Agenda Item 3



62. APPLICATION FOR A HACKNEY CARRIAGE DRIVERS LICENCE

Decision:

To refuse to issue a licence to drive a Hackney Carriage on the grounds 
that the applicant was not a fit and proper person to hold such a licence 
under section 59 (1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) 
Act 1976.

The Legal Advisor introduced those present and confirmed the name of the 
applicant.

Members had been circulated with exempt report CSL155 which concerned the 
fitness of the applicant to hold a hackney carriage drivers licence.  The 
applicant had held a hackney carriage drivers licence with South Kesteven 
between December 2009 and November 2014.  However, the applicant had 
had his licence revoked at the Licensing Committee meeting in November 2014 
due to driving offences as outlined within the report and the supporting 
appendices. The applicant had a history of speeding offences and at one time 
had accumulated nine Driver Vehicle Agency (DVLA) penalty points.

The applicants Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) application was checked 
and sent to the DBS.  The applicants DVLA licence was also checked and it 
revealed two convictions for speeding which had occurred in November and 
December 2017.  Both convictions had resulted in the three penalty points 
being issued for each conviction.

The Licensing Officer discussed the application with the applicant and informed 
him that due to his history, his application would be referred to the Licensing 
Committee.   The applicant stated that he was prepared to attend the 
Committee to explain the circumstances and the fact that he had not worked 
since 2014.  The Licensing Officer referred to the six penalty points that had 
been received during the last eight months which indicated that the applicant 
still had an issue of driving in excess of the speed limit.  The applicant indicated 
that he would reconsider submitting his application.  When the Licensing Officer 
contacted the applicant again, the applicant indicated that he was of good 
character and that members of the public liked him and he wanted his 
application to progress.

The Licensing Officer referred members to the Council’s Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Licensing Policy 2015, Appendix D, relevance of convictions to 
applications, general policy, 2.1 which stated: 

“It should be noted that, since 2002, hackney carriage and private hire 
vehicle drivers are exempted from the protection of the Rehabilitation of 
Offenders Act 1974, so that all convictions whether spent or not can be 
considered as to whether they are relevant in respect of any proceedings 
held in respect of an application for the grant, renewal or cancellation of 
a licence to be a hackney carriage or private hire vehicle driver.”

4



The applicant then presented his case. He told the Committee where he lived 
and that he had not been able to get employment since his hackney carriage 
driver’s licence was revoked.

Members questioned the applicant about the recent driving convictions that had 
taken place within the last year.  To which the applicant responded that he 
would be more careful going forward.

The Licensing Officer gave his closing statement and referred to the two 
options available to the Committee:

a) To  issue a licence to drive a hackney carriage, or
b) To refuse to issue a licence to drive a Hackney Carriage on the 

grounds that the applicant is not a fit and proper person to hold such 
a licence under section 59 (1) of the Local Government  
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976

The applicant gave his closing statement and assured Members that he was 
taking his application seriously and would be more careful in future.

(10:25am the Licensing Officer and the applicant left the meeting)

Members considered the information before them having regard to all the 
relevant guidance, polices and the representations made.  Members were very 
concerned that the driver did not appear to have learnt by his mistakes and 
continued to drive above the speed limit, he had two speeding convictions in 
less than a year.  Members were also conscious of his previous history in 
relation to speeding.  For clarity the Legal Advisor read out the relevant section 
in relation to offences under the Rehabilitation Act which were exempt when 
dealing with hackney carriage applications.   It was proposed, seconded and 
unanimously agreed to refuse to issue a licence to drive a hackney carriage as 
the Committee were satisfied that the applicant was not a fit and proper person 
to hold a hackney carriage drivers licence.

(10:35am the Licensing Officer and applicant returned to the meeting)

The Legal Advisor read out the Committee’s decision.  The Committee had 
taken into account relevant law, policy and guidance, the content of the report 
and the representations made.  The Committee felt that the applicant had a 
consistent problem with keeping to the speed limit and despite the number of 
convictions the applicant had received for traffic offences the Committee felt 
that his standards had not improved. The recent convictions for speeding 
supported this.  The Legal Advisor read out an extract from the Council’s 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy, Appendix D, 2. General 
Policy, 2.2:

“A person with a conviction for serious crime need not be permanently barred 
from obtaining a licence but shall be expected to have remained free of 
conviction for three to five years, according to the circumstances of the offence, 
before an application is granted.”

5



It was stressed that public safety was paramount.  The Committee were not 
satisfied that the applicant was fit and proper to hold a hackney carriage drivers 
licence  pursuant to section 59 (1) of the Local Government  (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 and their unanimous decision was to refuse to grant the 
licence.

The decision was appealable to the Magistrates Court within 21 days.

63. TAXI LICENSING AND THE EQUALITY ACT 2010

The meeting reverted back to a public meeting.

Members had been circulated with report CSL131 for information.  The report 
would be presented to the Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
Tuesday 11 September 2018.  The report concerned provisions that had been 
amended within the Equality Act 2010 in respect of wheelchair accessibility in 
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles.    The provisions allowed a 
licensing authority to create a list of “designated vehicles” which were capable 
of carrying passengers in wheelchairs and required drivers of those vehicles to 
provide mobility assistance. Currently the Council had six vehicles which would 
be classed as “designated vehicles” if the Council was to adopt the provisions 
of the Act.    Section 172 of the Act enabled vehicle owners to appeal to the 
Magistrates Court against the decision of a local authority to include their 
vehicles on a “designated vehicles” list.

Once an approved list of designated vehicles had been created by an authority 
it would be offence for a licensed driver of a designated vehicle, unless they 
had been granted a medical exemption by the local authority, to fail to comply 
with the duty to provide mobility assistance.  Again there was the ability for 
drivers to appeal to the Magistrates Court against a decision of a Local 
Authority not to issue an exemption certificate.

The list would be published to make it clear to the public which licensed 
vehicles were on the designated vehicles list. 

The adoption of the provisions of the Act is a discretionary power not a 
statutory requirement, although guidance issued by the Department for 
Transport recommended strongly that licensing authorities do maintain such a 
list.

Hackney Carriage drivers who buy vehicles were aware of the benefit and it 
protected both parties.   It was important to note that they could not charge 
more for the use of a designated vehicle, although those hackney carriage 
drivers who had a designated vehicle could get a 20% discount on their vehicle 
application fee.

A discussion followed with comments being made on:
- The number of designated vehicles – there was no set number required

6



- The type of vehicle 
- Physical requirement from drivers 
- Requests for medical exemptions could be applied for by the drivers
- The vehicles were for the transportation of wheelchairs only – this did 

not include mobility scooters.
- The designated list would be available to the general public – Members 

to be circulated with a copy.
- Vehicles adapted to include all wheelchairs including motorized ones
- Inclusion of assistance dogs in vehicles on the designated list – 

assistance dogs were already  referenced within the Council’s Hackney 
Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy

Members had found the report very interesting and welcomed the proposal to 
adopt the provisions of the Act within the Council’s licensing policy.

64. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 11:05am.

7



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

9

Agenda Item 4
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2018
	4 Application to Renew a Hackney Carriage Driver's Licence
	CSL161 Appendix 1
	CSL161 Appendix 2


